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Our tour began on the 16th May at 

Wareham where Martin, Judy, Steve and 

Roger boarded a Homeward Bound 16-

seater taxi, firstly stopping at Salisbury 

where Viv, Marc and Ian joined and then 

on to Medstead for Richard. A brief stop 

was made at Cobham Services on the M25 

before continuing our journey to the Premier Inn at Gatwick (South) where we arrived at 

1830 hours. After being allocated to our rooms we all enjoyed an evening meal together and 

Martin gave each of us his excellent Asiago Battlefield tour guide. 

Early on a damp Wednesday morning we assembled in reception at 0445 hours and left by 

taxi for the Gatwick South Terminal, arriving there twenty minutes later. We made our way 

to the baggage drop-off area and proceeded through passport and security controls. The 

opportunity was taken for an early breakfast and then we made our way to the departure area 

and boarded an A320 aircraft for our flight to Venice. We took off at 0730 hours in murky 

weather conditions and arrived one hour fifty minutes later at Marco Polo airport Venice in 

bright sun and a blue sky. Passing through automatic passport controls we collected our 

baggage and assembled in the airport entrance foyer. There we were greeted by Fabio Perselli 

who was to be our Italian translator.  He guided us to the coach park area where we met our 

driver, Matteo, loaded our bags and 

boarded a 24-seater coach. Leaving the 

airport at 1100 hours (Italian time) we 

drove along the A4 Autostrada towards 

Vicenza, our base for the tour, and the 

drive through the Italian countryside was a 

pleasurable one. Fabio gave us a brief talk 

about the Asiago area its history as we 

motored onward. On arriving at Vicenza we were taken to the Piazzale Della Vittoria, the 

square in front of the church of St. Mary, a minor basilica at top of Monte Berico to observe 

the magnificent panoramic views of the city with the Alps as a backdrop in the far distance. 

The present 17th century basilica was built alongside the original 15th century church. In the 
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16th century, a covered walkway of stairs was constructed in honour of the Virgin Mary from 

bottom of Monte Berico to the church 

by the architect Francesco Muttoni. 

The walkway is over 700-metres in 

length and consists of 150 arches, 

grouped in tens, symbolising the 

fifteen mysteries and one-hundred 

and fifty Hail Marys in the rosary. In 

the square is a large monument 

commemorating those from Vicenza 

who died in the 1848 Italian revolution. The Alpini of Vicenza, are also commemorated by 

two 20th century tablets decorated with the black feather of the Corps. 

Our hotel was situated just below the crest of Monte Berico. We checked in at 1215 hours 

and were greeted by Lucia Barban the hotel manager. Used by pilgrims the hotel has a lovely 

quiet and peaceful contemplative atmosphere and fully met the requirements of our tour 

party. Assigned to our rooms, time was taken to freshen up and relax before we met in 

reception at 1400 hours for our afternoon adventures. 

We had a light afternoon lunch at a nearby 

restaurant sitting outside on the wide veranda 

overlooking the city. We all remarked on the 

Italian ingredients of our lunch which were 

local, fresh and stimulated the palette aided 

of course by Moretti beer and coffee!  Lunch 

over, and a ten minute walk took us up the 

Ambellicopoli hill to the Museo Del 

Risorgimento e Della Resistenza in the Villa Guiccioli. The unification of Italy and its 

associated political aspirations or óRisorgimentoô led to the establishment of the Kingdom of 

Italy in the 19th century. The Italian resistance movement or óResistenzaô was an overall term 

used by the resistance groups opposed to the occupation by the Germans and the Italian 

Fascists. Entrance to the museum is free, it is well organised, airy and spacious. All the 

artefacts, militaria, documents and photographs are clearly displayed for the visitor. 

Progression through the museum begins with the era of the Venetian Republic, followed by 

the Napoleonic period, occupation by the Austrians, influence of the Ottomans, the First 
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World War, Mussolini and the Second World War. Included amongst the many fascinating 

items are numerous British artefacts. Although all the labelling of the displayed material is 

written in Italian, common sense and the visual imagination helped us to understand what we 

were observing. In the forecourt of the museum are several guns and equipment of the First 

World War. We all enjoyed the visit and meandered back to the hotel admiring the views 

across the city. The group ate together at a nearby restaurant, a short walk from the hotel. 

Many of the tables are laid out on a large open air veranda and the restaurant offers a wide 

selection of Italian food and drink. With our batteries fully recharged we returned to the hotel 

for a good nightôs sleep. 

After an early breakfast on the Thursday morning we left the hotel in our coach with another 

driver also called Mateo. From Vicenza we drove via the A31 Autostrada from where we 

turned on to the S349 towards the town of Asiago and began to ascend the Asiago Plateau. A 

series of ten hair pin bends on the S349 quickly took us above the valley plain below 

enabling us to admire the stunning landscape views of small towns and villages.  

Just before the small town of Canove we turned off the 

S349 and entered a pine forest for a visit to Boscon British 

Cemetery. The cemetery contains 166 First World War 

casualties some of which were concentrated here from other 

smaller cemeteries after the end of the war. Parking off road 

we left the coach and had a twenty-five minute walk 

through the beautiful and aromatic pine forest with trees 

100-foot tall. On reaching the cemetery a party of school 

children and their teachers were gathered outside the 

cemetery. Fabio introduced himself and informed them that 

we were from Great Britain and members of the Wessex Branch WFA. With Fabio 

translating Martin explained to the children about why the British had fought on the Italian 

front, the cemetery, the significance of the headstones with regimental crests and of those 

inscribed óKnown Only to Godô. We had previously decided to lay a wreath on behalf of the 

Branch and invited the school children and their teachers to join us in a short service of 

commemoration. Viv laid the wreath at the Cross of Sacrifice and Martin recited the 

exultation ï Fabio translated for the children who remained quiet and respectful. After a two 

minute silence Roger recited the Kohima Epitaph. The children took several photographs in 

the cemetery and we were then thanked by them and their teachers, two of whom Claudia 
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Ballarin and Oriana Darü warmly shook our hands and exchanged e-mail addresses as they 

would like to have a copy of this tour report and photographs. 

 

We were all very impressed by the conduct of these children who had come from St Francis 

of Assisi School, Casier, in Treviso.   We all got a lot from the event and it was appreciated 

by all.  The children and their teachers continued their walk to view other nearby battlefield 

sites. Close by the cemetery was a private memorial to a young 17-year-old Italian man who 

was shot by the Fascists in 1944. We had all enjoyed our visit to Boscon Cemetery and it was 

an excellent start to our day. 

We then drove on into Asiago and parked at the bottom of the Via degli Eroi (Road of 

Heroes), lined with cypress trees which guide the visitor up to the Asiago War Memorial, one 

of the largest Italian memorials commemorating the First World War. Situated on the top of 

Leiten Hill and within walking distance of Asiago 

town centre it dominates the landscape of the Asiago 

Plateau. The Sacrario di Asiago or Sacrari Militaire 

Del Leiten was designed by the architect Orfeo 

Rossato. An enormous block of locally-mined white 

marble, 80-metres square was used for the base. 



 

6 
 

Erected on the base is a Roman quadrifrons arch ï four faced with four arches ï 47-metres in 

height. A wide stone staircase leads up to a terrace and the entrance. The decorative exterior 

wall sculpture was created by Roberto Montini and Giuseppe Zanetti. Completed in 1938 the 

inauguration ceremony was held on the 17th July, attended by Benito Mussolini and King 

Victor Emanuel III. Within the interior of the memorial is a crypt, an octagonal chapel and 

altar. The chapel houses the remains of twelve recipients of the Italian Gold Medal of Valour. 

Behind the interior walls are burial niches containing the remains of 33,086 Italian soldiers 

whose bodies were exhumed from cemeteries on the Asiago Plateau between 1935 and 1938. 

The identified were placed in individual niches in alphabetical order and the unidentified in 

two communal tombs. 12,795 Italians are identified and 20,291 unidentified and the remains 

of 18,505 Austro-Hungarian soldiers of which 12,355 are unknown were brought in at a later 

date. There is also a small museum near the crypt which has on display artefacts retrieved 

from the Asiago battlefields, documents and photographs. Arranged around the exterior of the 

memorial are several original restored cannons. We enjoyed the views of the landscape 

surrounding the memorial and Asiago, occupied by the Austro-Hungarians in May 1916 and 

virtually destroyed during the war.  It was an apt moment for us to have an early lunch in the 

town at a nearby pizzeria used by the local inhabitants and where we too enjoyed an excellent 

meal and good service. Asiago was preparing for the arrival on the 27th May of the Giro 

dôItalia, the famous Italian cycle race. Shops windows were dressed in pink material and 

bunting of similar colour hung across the streets ï pink is the colour of the race leaderôs shirt. 

Leaving at 1415 hours we drove through and out of the town observing the houses and 

buildings with their low sloping roofs, a feature of Alpine regions. We continued to climb 

steadily through the Val di Campomulo towards Monte Ortigara.  Having covered about one-

third of the distance on the southern part of the Asiago Plateau we stopped at a small roadside 

memorial chapel, recently refurbished. Although we were unable to gain access into the 

chapel, on the external side wall facing 

the road there is a mural of Italian 

soldiers returning from the Russia. In 

January 1943, 45,000 Italian soldiers 

broke out of the Russian front after the 

Battle of Nikolajewka, many were 

frostbitten, ill and demoralized. When 

the survivors reached Italy the Fascist 

regime tried to keep them away from the general public because of their skeletal condition. A 
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memorial tablet within the chapel was dedicated to a member of the Alpini Corps, Antonio 

Finco Scampit (1910-1997) and presumably he was a remarkable survivor from the retreat 

from Russia. 

Continuing our drive through the Val di Campomulo we passed several isolated private 

memorials. There was clear visible evidence that war had scarred this landscape with jagged 

holes blasted out of the rock face for shelter from artillery bombardments. The narrow made-

up road eventually petered out and the last 10-kilometres to the car park, was an uneven 

surface which tested the skill of our driver. We stopped to look at a trench line cut into the 

rock by the Italians. After 100 years the trenches were covered by lichen and lined with pine 

needles and care had to be taken walking through them. Fissures and holes were numerous 

waiting to trap an unsuspecting visitor. Rough, burrow-like holes had been cut into the trench 

walls, presumably for shelter or sleeping and the wider sections could have been used as 

dressing stations or strongpoints. 

We reached the car parking area below the Monte Ortigara at 1500 hours. It was too late for 

us to walk to the summit, an overall three hour journey there and back. Information display 

boards gave details about the First World War combatants. The Battle of Monte Ortigara was 

fought by the 6th Italian Army Corps between the 10th and 25th June, 1917 and has been 

described as the ñItalian Verdunò. The attack was launched against the Austrians who had 

been able to reinforce their defensive positions during their Strafexpedition ï (Punitive 

Expedition) ï in 1916. Although the Italians had a three to one superiority in men and guns 

they failed to dislodge the Austrians. The 

Italians sustained 23,000 casualties and the 

Austrians 9,000. The commanding general of 

the Italian 6th Army, Ettore Mambretti was 

held responsible for the defeat and was 

removed from his command. In 1920, the 

Alpini survivors from the battle erected a 

memorial column ï the Colonna Mozza ï on 

the mountain peak. 
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Monte Ortigara is of special significance to the Alpini who had 

the column inscribed with the words ñIn Order Not to Forgetò. 

In 1960 the Austrians erected a memorial on a nearby peak, in 

remembrance of their soldiers who fought on the mountain. 

There were two small memorials, a short distance from the car 

park erected by the pathway leading up towards the summit. 

One was to 2,000 unknown Alpini soldiers who fought on the 

mountain and have no known grave. A Wessex Branch poppy 

cross was placed in front of this memorial. 

Our journey back to Asiago took nearly one-and-a-half hours and after passing through 

Canove and towards the village of Cesuna we stopped at Magnaboschi Military Cemetery. 

One of the five CWGC cemeteries on the Asiago Plateau, it contains 183 burials of the First 

World War most of whom had participated in the Battle of Vittorio Veneto fought between 

the 24th October and 4th November 1918. Opposite the British cemetery is the Italo-Austrian 

Magnaboschi Military Cemetery. During the 

1930s significant numbers of identified soldiers 

from both sides were removed and taken to the 

Asiago Ossuary. The graves of those who still 

lie there both identified and unidentified ï 1,739 

Italian and 596 Austro-Hungarian ï have 

broken pine tree stumps, approximately one-

and-a-half metres in height, painted white, with the top edge chamfered, to which is attached 

a small inscribed plaque. On each of the tree stumps, below the chamfered edge is another 

small plaque in the colours of either the Italian or Austrian national flag which helps to 

identify from which country the casualty originated. There is a three metre high Cross of 

Sacrifice on the far side of the cemetery incorporating both a cross and bayonet. The wide 

pathway from the entrance gate to the Cross of Sacrifice is lined with gravel in the colours of 

the Italian national flag.   
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 A short distance away to the right of the cemetery is the Colonna Romana, a marble column, 

donated by the city of Rome. It marks the position where the Italian 33rd Division brought to 

a halt the Austro-Hungarian advance in 1916.   

We left this fascinating area of the Asiago Plateau at 1900 

hours and drove back to Vicenza, arriving one hour later at 

our hotel. We expressed our thanks to the coach driver for his 

sterling work in driving up to Monte Ortigara, having never 

done so before. After a quick comfort stop at the hotel it was 

out again to enjoy another splendid Italian evening meal. 

Friday was another early start as before us lay a two hour 

drive to Trento for a visit to the Alpini Museum.  The drive 

along the S46 and S12 was very pleasant and relaxing as we passed through the green fertile 

Val Lagarina valley with terraced fields beneath the high rugged mountains. The Alpini 

Corps were formed in 1872, eleven years after the unification of Italy to guard and protect 

Italyôs mountain borders with France and Austria. Members of the Alpini Corps wear a 

distinctive feathered grey felt cap ï the Cappello Alpini ï which is adorned by a feather or 

ópennaô indicating the rank of the wearer as follows: a black ravenôs feather for the lower 

ranks, a brown eagleôs feather for NCOôs and junior officers and a white goose feather for 

senior officers and generals. The badge worn on the front of the cappello has a ófregioô or 

eagle beneath which is the coat of arms of each regiment. The Alpini are an elite corps of the 

Italian army and is the oldest mountain infantry in the world. 

Access to the museum is via a steep winding hill ï the Doss Trento ï on the right bank of the 

Adige River. The road follows the contours of a rock outcrop and through a tunnel cut by the 

Alpini. Within the tunnel and set into the rock face is a memorial, with discreet low lighting 

and decorated with flowers. It commemorates the construction of the road and tunnel, begun 

in 1940 and completed two years later by 200 Alpini from five Alpini Divisions.  On arrival 

we were warmly greeted by Brigadier-General Stephano Bassett and the President of the 

Associazione Nazionale Alpini (ANA) ï the Alpini Association. The association was formed 

in July 1919 by the war veterans and today has over 300,000 members. After introductions 

we were given coffee by the Alpini Museum staff. A short but poignant service was held at 

the Memorial in the museumôs forecourt, where Martin accompanied by the Brigadier-
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General laid a wreath on behalf of the Wessex Branch 

WFA. This was followed by the exultation, a two minutes 

silence and the sounding of the Italian Last Post.  Before 

entering the museum Brigadier-General Bassett and his 

staff were presented with Wessex Branch lapel badges 

which they promptly pinned to their uniforms.  Brigadier-

General Bassett gave us a personal tour, explaining the 

history and traditions of the Alpini Corps in peace and 

war. He spoke about Cesare Battisti, an important and 

revered figure in Italian political and social history. They 

have a life-size photograph of Cesare Battisti in the 

museum and interesting memorabilia associated with 

him. The museum has a fascinating collection of artefacts, documents, medals, militaria, 

photographs, maps and other material of the First World War and other conflicts. Opened in 

1958 the museum is compact and all the artefacts and militaria are well displayed, many of 

them given by former members of the corps. A short stairway at the far end of the museum 

leads into the ï Sacrarium of the Alpine Troops,  the branch was again honoured by the 

placement of our wreath in this hallowed spot after our short commemorative service.  In the 

centre of this revered place is a large rock brought down from Monte Grappa where so many 

Alpini Troops lost their lives and engraved on large white panels mounted on the walls, are 

the names of recipients decorated for valour in conflicts from 1848 to 1945. There are also 

paintings, gold medals and a triptych ñFalchi e Predeò ï ñHawks and Preyò ï painted in the 

trenches by Mario Urbani. In an adjacent but separate building ï the Uniform Hall ï is a 

collection of military skis, uniforms and equipment of the Alpini. There is also small stable 

unit which contains a blacksmiths workshop and accoutrements for mules, a valuable asset 

for transporting supplies and equipment in the mountains. Arranged around the pathway 

outside the museum are large rectangular memorial stone pillars, each dedicated to an Alpini 

battalion. 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 




